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Inc. (herein, “Defendant”):

O | O

Plaintiff Sony Corporation files this complaint against LG Electronics U.S.A.,

THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Sony Corporation (“Sony”) is a Japanese corporation with a
principal place of business at 1-7-1, Konan, Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan.

2. Upon information and pelief, LG Electroni¢s U.8.A., In¢. (“LG
Electronics USA”) is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware and with
its principal place of business at 1000 Sylvan Avenue, Englewood Cliffs, New
Jersey 07632. Upon information and belief, LG Electronics USA makes, imports
into the United States, offers for sale, sells and/or uses in the United States

products, including, without limitation, display devices.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This lawsuit is an action for patent infringement arising under the
patent laws of the United States, 35 U.S.C. §§ 1 et seq. This Court has jurisdiction
over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338.

2. LG Electronics USA is subject to personal jurisdiction in this Court
because, on information and belief, it does and has done substantial business in
this judicial District, including: (i) designating an agent for service of process in
the State of California; (ii) committing acts of patent infringement and/or
contributing to or inducing acts of patent infringement by others in this District
and elsewhere in California and the United States; (iii) regularly doing business or
soliciting business, engaging in other persistent courses of conduct, and/or
deriving substantial revenue from products and/or services provided to individuals

in this District and in this State; (iv) regularly receiving shipments of infringing
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display devices in this District and in this State; and (\.r) participating in litigation
in this judicial District. ,

3. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391
and 1400(b) because Defendant regularly conducts business in this judicial district
have regular and established places of business in this judicial district, and/or
‘bécause certain of the acts complained of herein occurred in this judicial district.

4,  Upon information and belief, LG Electronics isa parent corporation

- and/or owns more than 10 percent of LG Electronics USA.

5. A true and correct copy of a weﬁpage retrieved on September 26,

2010 from http://www.lg.com/us/about-lg/corporate-information/overview/global-

operations.jsp?Area=Globall AP&Nation=KR is attached hereto as Exhibit A.
6. A true and correct copy of a webpage retrieved on September 26,

2010 from hitp://fwww.lg.com/us/about-lg/corporate-information/overview/global-
operations.jsp? Area=Global NA&Nation=US is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

7.  Atrue and correct copy of an excerpt of a search result for LG
ELECTRONICS as “Shipper” retrieved on October 12, 2010 from

http://www.importgenius.com is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

8. A true and correct copy of an excerpt of a search result for LG
ELECTRONICS U.S.A. as “Consignee” retrieved on October 12, 2010 from
http://www.importgenius.com is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

9. A true and coirect copy of a document entitled L.G Electronics Inc.
Interim Separate Financial Statements: June 30, 2010 and 2009 is attached hereto
as Exhibit E.

10. A true and correct copy a webpage retrieved on September 26, 2010
from .
http://lge. links.channelintelligence.com/oemsites/9939267/Maps/cii_lge eu.asp?ci
i_nRadius=15&cii nRuleGrouplD=1144&cii_sCountry=US&cii_sZip=00012&acii

sSKU=47SL.80& is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

3.

2
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THE PATENTS IN SUIT

11.  On July 18, 1995, the USPTO issued U.S. Patent No. 5,434,626 titled
“Display Apparatus Displaying Operation Menu” (hereinafter “the ‘626 patent™).
A true and correct copy of the ‘626 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit G.

12, OnMay 12, 1998, the USPTO issued U.S. Patent No. 5,751,373 titled
-“Television Function Selection Method, Television Receiver and Remote
Commander for Television Receiver” (hereinafter “the ‘373 patent™). A true and
correct copy of the ‘373 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit H.

13.  On November 9, 2004, the USPTO issued U.S. Patent No. 6,816,131
titled “Single Horizontal Scan Range CRT Monitor” (hereinafter “the ‘131
patent”). A true and correct copy of the ‘131 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit I,

14.  On August 29, 2000, the USPTO issued U.S. Patent No. 6,111,614
titled “Method and Apparatus for Dispiaying an Electronic Menu having
Components with Differing Levels of Transparency” (hereinafter “the ‘614
patent”). A true and correct copy of the ‘614 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit J.

15. The ‘626 patent, ‘373 patent, ‘131 patent, and ‘614 patent collectively
are henceforth referred to as the “patents-in-suit.”

16.  Sony is the owner of all right, title, and interest in and to each of the
patents-in-suit with full and exclusive right to bring suit to enforce this patent,

including the right to recover for past infringement.

| COUNT I
INFRINGEMENT OF THE ‘626 PATENT

17.  Sony realleges and incorporates herein the allegations of the

preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

4.

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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18.  Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.8.C. § 271,
Defendant has iﬂfringed and ié continuing to infringe, literally and/or under the
doctrine of equivalents, the ‘626 patent by practicing one or more claims of the
‘626 patent in the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of
display devices, digital televisions and monitors (“LG Products™) including, for
example, the LG 32LD350 LCD TV and LG E2360V LCD Monitor, which permit
the display characteristics of unavailable items in a menu to be controlled. Sony
reserves its right to contend that additional LG products infringe the ‘626 patent.

19.  Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,
Defendant has infringed and is continuing to infringe the ‘626 patent by
contributing to and/or actively inducing the infringement by others of the ‘626
patent by the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of the
LG Products, including, for example, the LG 32LD350 LCD TV and LG E2360V
LCD Monitor, which permit the display characteristics of unavailable items in a
menu to be controlled, and which LG products are thereby especially adapted for
infringing the ‘626 patent. Sony reserves its right to contend that additional LG
products indirectly infringe the ‘626 patent. Upon information and belief,
Defendant further actively induces others, including users of the LG products, to
infringe the ‘626 patent through the sale of LG Products to customers along with
directions, demonstrations, guides, and/or manuals that encourage the infringing
use of the LG Products. True and correct copies of the Owner’s Manuals for the
LG 32LD350 LCD TV and the LG E2360V LCD Monitor are attached hereto as .
Exhibits K and L, respectively. Upon information and belief, Defendant knew or
should have known its actions would cause direct infringement of the ‘626 patent
and did so with intent to encourage direct infringement.

20.  Upon information and belief, Defendant’s infringement of the *626

patent has been, and continues to be, willful, deliberate, and intentional as

5.

1 Filed 02/09/11 .Rage 5.0£50..Rage ID.#20 ..
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infringement, thus acting in reckless disregard of Sony’s patent rights.

O \ O

Defendant continues its acts of infringement after being placed on notice of their

21.  Upon information and belief, Defendant’s acts of infringement of the
‘626 patent will continue after service of this complaint unless enjoined by the
Court.

22, As a result of Defendant’s infringement, Sony has suffered and will
suffer dz;.mages. '

23.  Sony is entitled to recover from Defendant the damageé sustained by
Sony as a result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at
trial.,

24,  Unless Defendant is enjoined by this Court from continuing their
infringement of the ‘626 patent, Sony will suffer additional irreparable harm and
impairment of the value of its patent rights. Thus, Sony is entitled to a preliminary

and permanent injunction against further 1nfrmgement

COUNT I
INFRINGEMENT OF THE ‘373 PATENT

25.  Sony realleges and incorporates herein the allegations of the
preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

26. Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,
Defendant has infringed and is continuing to infringe, literally and/or under the
doctrine of equivalents, the ‘373 patent by practicing one or more claims of the
‘373 patent in the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of
the LG Products, including, for example, the LG 32LD350 LCD TV, which have
hierarchical on-screen menus that allow users to designate and select items that are
displayed in the menu. Sony reserves its right to contend that additional LG

products infringe the ‘373 patent,
6=
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. Defendant has infringed and is continuing to infringe the ‘373 patent by

27.  Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,

contributing to and/or actively inducing the infringement by others of the <373
patent by the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of the
LG Products, including, for example, the .G 32LD350 L.CD TV, which have
hierarchical on-screen menus-that allow users to designate and select items that are
displayed in the menu, and which LG products are thereby especially adapted for
infringing the ‘373 patent. Sony reserves its right to contend that additional LG
products indirectly infringe the 373 patent. Upon information and belief,
Defendant further active!y induces others, including users of the LG products, to
infringe the ‘373 patent through the sale of LG Products to customers along with
directions, demonstrations, guides, and/or manuals that encourage the infringing
use of the LG Products. Upon information and belief, Defendant knew or should
have known their actions would cause direct infringement of the ‘373 patent and
did so with intent to encourage direct iﬁfringement. _

28.  Upon information and belief, Defendant’s infringement of the *373
patent has been, and continues to be, willful, deliberate,' and intentional as
Defendant continues its acts of infringement after being placed on notice of their
infringement, thus acting in reckless disregard of Sony’s patent rights.

29. - Upon information and belief, Defendant’s acts of infringement of the
‘373 patent will continue after service of this complaint unless enjoined by the
Court.

30.  Asaresult of Defendant’s infringement, Sony has suffered and will
suffer damages.

31.  Sony is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by
Sony as a result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject td proof at

trial.

-7-
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1 32.  Unless Defendant is enjoined by this Court from continuing their
21| infringement of the ‘373 patent, Sony will suffer additional irreparable harm and
3 | impairment of the value of its patent rights. Thus, Sony is entitled to a preliminary
4| and permanent injunction against further infringement.
s ; .
6 COUNT I
7 INFRINGEMENT OF THE ‘131 PATENT
8 | '
9 - 33, Sony realleges and incorporates herein the allegations of the
10 || preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein,
11 34. Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,
12| Defendant has infringed and is continuing to infringe, literally and/or under the
13 || doctrine of equivalents, the ‘131 patent by practicing one or mﬁre claims of the
14 || 131 patent in the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of
15]f the LG Products, including, for example, the LG 32LD350 LCD TV and LG
16 || E2360V LCD Monitor, which can convert initial display signals having one of a
17} plurality of input resolutions to digital output sigrials having a different resolution
18|} and the same horizontal frequency as the monitor. Sony reserves its right to
19|j contend that additional LG products infringe the ‘131 patent.
20 35.  Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,
21| Defendant has infringed and is continuing to infringe the 131 patent by
" 22|} contributing to and/or actively inducing the inﬁingement by others of the €131
23} patent by the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of the
24|| LG Products, including, for example, the LG 32LD350 LCD TV and LG E2360V
25| LCD Monitor, which can convert initial display signals having one of a plurality of
26 || input resolutions to digital output signals having a different resolution and the
27| same horizontal frequency as the monitor, and which LG products are thereby
28| especially adapted for infringing the ‘131 patent. Sony reserves its right to
02347.51742/3959541,) «8.
COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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contend that additional LG products indirectly infringe the ‘131 patent. Upon

information and belief, Defendant further actively induces others, including users

of the LG products, to.infringe the ‘131 patent through the sale of LG Products to |

customers along with directions, demonstrations, guides, and/or manuals that
encourage the infﬁnging use of'the LG Products. Upon information and belief,

Defendant knew or should have known their actions would cause direct

~ infringement of the ‘131 patent and did so with intent to encourage direct

infringément.
36. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s infringement of the *131

patent has been, and continues to be, willful, deliberate, and intentional as

Defendant continue their acts of infringement after being placed on notice of their
infringement, thus acting in reckless disregard of Sony’s patent rights.

37. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s acts of infringement of the
‘131 patent will continue after service of this complaint unless enjoined by the
Court. .

38. - Asaresult of Defendant’s infringement, Sony has suffered and will
suffer damages.

39. Sony is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by
Sony as a result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at
trial. _

40.  Unless Defendant is enjoined by this Court from continuing their
infringement of the ‘131 patent, Sony will suffer additional irreparable harm and
impairment of the value of its patent rights. Thus, Sony is entitled to a preliminary

and permanent injunction against further infringement.

-O.
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COUNT IV
INFRINGEMENT OF THE ‘614 PATENT

41.  Sony realleges and incorporates herein the allegations of the
preceding paragraphs of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.
42. Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,

‘Defendant has infringed and is continuing to infringe, literally and/or under the

doctrine of equivalents, the ‘614 patent by practicing one or more claims of the

‘614 patent in the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of

" the LG Products, including, for example, the' LG 32L D350 LCD TV, which

generate on-screen menu displays in which certain components of the menu
display are more or less transparent than other components of the menu display.
Sony reserves its right to contend that additional LG products infringe the ‘614
patent.

43. Upon information and belief, in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271,
Defendant has infringed and is continuing to infringe the ‘614 patent by
contributing to and/or actively inducing the infringement by others of the ‘614
patent by the manufacture, use, offering for sale, sale, and/or importation of the
LG Products, including, for example, the LG 32LD350 LCD TV, which generate
on-screen menu displays in which certain components of the menu display are
more or less transparent than other components of the menu display, and which
LG products are thereby especially adapted for infringing the ‘614 patent. Sony
reserves its right to contend that additional LG products indirectly infringe the
‘614 patent. Upon information and belief, Defendant further actively induces
others, including users of the LG products, to infringe the ‘614 patent through the
sale of LG Products to customers along with directions, demonstrations, guides,
and/or manuals that encourage the infringing use of the LG Products. Upon

information and belief, Defendant knew or should have known their actions would

.10
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cause direct infringement of the ‘614 patent and did so with intent to encourage
direct infringement, |

44. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s infringement of the *614
patent has beén, and continues to be, willful, deliberate, and intentional as
Defendant continue their acts of infringement after being placed on notice of their
infringement, thus acting in reckless disregard of Soﬁy’s patent rights.

45. Upbn information and belief, Defendant’s acts of infringement of the
614 patent will continue after service of this complaint unless enjoined by the
Court.

46. Asaresult of Defendant’s infringement, Sony has suffered and will
suffer damages.

47. Sony is entitled to recover from Defendant the damages sustained by
Sony as a result of Defendant’s wrongful acts in an amount subject to proof at
trial.

48, Unless Defendant is enjoined by this Court from continuing their
infringement of the ‘614 patent, Sony will suffer additional irreparable harm and
impairment of the value of its patent rights. Thus, Sony is entitled to a preliminary

and permanent injunction against further infringement.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Sony prays for the following relief’
(a) That Defendant be ordered to pay damages adequate to

compensate Sony for Defendant’s infringement of each of the patents-in-suit
pursuant to 35 U.S.C, § 284;

(b) That Defendant be ordered to pay treble damages for willful
infringement of each of the patents-in-suit pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;

(¢) That Defendant be ordered to pay attorneys’ fees pursuant to 35
U.S8.C. § 285 for its infringement of each of the patents-in-suit;

-11- '
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(d)  That Defendant, their officers, agents, servants, employees, and
those persons acting in active concert or in participation with them be enjoined from
further infringement of each of the patents-in-suit pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 283;

(e) That Defendant be ordered to pay prejudgment interest;

(f)  That Defendant be ordered to pay all costs associated with this
action; and

(g) That Sony be granted such other and additional relief as the
Court deems just and prop.er,

DATED: February 9, 2011 Respectfully submitted,

v By Sl

Steven W~ Anderson
Rory S. Miller
QUINN EMANUEL URQUHART &

SULLIVAN, LLP

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Sony Corporation

=12=
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff hereby

demands a trial by jury as to all issues so triable.

DATED: February 9, 2011 Respectfully submitted, -

Steven MF derson
Rory S. Miller
QUINN EMANUEL URQUHART &

SULLIVAN, LLP

Attorneys for Plaintiff
Sony Corporation
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Auditors’ Review Report

To the Board of Birectors and Shereholders of
LG Elsctronics Ing.

We have reviewed the accompanying Interim separate statement of financlef position of LG Elsctronics Inc.
(the "Company®) as of June 30, 2010, and the related separate Income stalements, statements of
comprehsensive income for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2010, and changes In
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the six-month period ended June 30, 2010, expressed in Korean
'won. These interim seperate financial slatements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibllity is to Issue a report on these interim separate financial statements based on our review.
We hava not reviewed the Interim separats income statements and statements of comprehansive Income
for the three-month and six-month pericds ended June 30, 2009, and changss in shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for the six-month perlod ended June 30, 2009, presented hereln for comparative purposes,

We conducled our review In accordance with semi-annual review standards established by the Sscurities
and Futures Commission of the Republic of Korea, These standards require that we plan and perform our
raview fo obleln moderate assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of matertal
misstatemant. A revigw s Uimited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and analytical proceduras
applied to financlal data and thus provide less assurancs than an audit, We have not performed an audit
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinjon.

Based on our review, nothing has come {o our attention that causes us fo belleve that the Interim separats
financlal statements referred to above are not presented falry, In all materlal respects, In accordance with
Intemational Financlal Reporting Slandards as adopted by the Republle of Kerea ("Korean IFRS™),

We reviewed the non-consolidated income stetements and statements of comprehensive income for the
fhree-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2009, and changes In shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for the six-month period ended June 30, 2009 In accordanca with accounting standards generally
accapted in the Republic of Korea (not Korean IFRS), Based on our review opinion dated August 7, 2009,
we stated that nothing had come to our altention thet caused ue to belleva that the non-consolidated
Inter’m financlal stalements refered to above were nol presented falrly, in all maleral respects, In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the Republic of Korea. Thase non-
consollgated interim financlal stalements are not Included In this review report.

Samll PricawaterhoussGoopers
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Without qualifying our oplnion, we draw ationtion that the Company has adopled early the Korean IFRS

on Januery 1, 2010, as explalnad in Note 2. These Interdm separate finenclal slatements have been

prepared In accordance with Korean IFRS issued and effective or Issued and early adopfed at the
. reporling date,

il

Saoul, Korea
August 23, 2010

This review report is effactive as of August 23, 2010, the review report date. Certain subsequeni events
or circumstancas, which may occur between the review report date and the fime of reading this report,
could heve a materlal impact on the accompanying Interim separate financlal statements and noles
thereto, Accordingly, the readers of the review report should understand thet there Is a posalbliity that
the above review report may have to be ravised to reflect the impact of such subssequent svents or
circumstances, if any.
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LG Electronics Inc. . |
Interim Separate Statements of Financlal Position C
June 30, 2010 and Dacember 31, 2009 : J

{in millians of Korean won) Note June 30, 2010 December 34, 2009
Assels '
Curront assets
Cash and cash equivalents 23 716,276 769,986
Financial deposits 23 13,000 223,000
Trade recelvables 4,22 - 6,982,838 5,184,569
Loans and other recelvables 313,418 321,134
Inventories 1,184,380 767,019
Current Income tax assels 2,169 -
Other current assots 530,134 435,088
’ 9,742,215 7,801,694
Non-current asasis
Financial deposiis 28,057 23,023
Loans and other recelvables 344,400 339,784
Other financlel assels 85,633 82,707 -
Proparty, plant and equipment &, 21 4,558,605 4657140
Intanglble assetls §, 21 721,633 686,817
Deforved Income tax assets 90,511 -
Investments in ;
subsldlaries, jointly controlled antities and assoclates é 7,908,350 7,807,100
investment properly 9,932 10,020
Other non-current assets 738,747 766,816
14,487,807 14,453,616
Total assets 24,230,122 © 22,143,210
Lizbllitles
Current liabllitles
Trade payables 22 - 4,925,281 9,819,977
Borrowings 7,23 2,693,876 1,504,573
Other payables 2406475 2,634,486
Other financiat llabilltles - 61,722
Current income tax abflities . 57,088
Provisions 8 178,663 196,890
Other current liabililies 580,407 483,604
10,682,701 8,668,430
Non-current liabllities
Borrowings . T,23 2,383,014 4,963,613
Other finenclal [lablilties 54,024 56,183
Deferred Income tax lisbliitles . 48,216
Deafined bensfi llabllity ) 9 487,858 203,280
Provislons 8 338,346 326,533
2,954,142 2,588,826
Total liabllitles 13,848,843 11,256,285
Equity
Pald-in caplial
Capital stock 809,169 809,169
Share premium 2,207,919 2,207,919
Retained eamings 10 7.567,704 7,892,649
Accumulated other comprehensive Income 11,308 11,137
Qther components of equity 1 (32,819} (32,819
Total equity 10,583,279 . 10,887,956
Total llabllities and vauity 24,230,122 22,143,210

The accompanying noles are an Integral part of these Interim separste financia) slatements.
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LG Electronics Inc. '

Interim Separate Income Statements and Statements of Comprehensive Incoms
Threa-Month end Six-Month Periods Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

{tn millions of Kovean won, excepf per shere amourds)  Nole

Not sales 12,22
Cost of sales 13,22
Grosg profit

Selling and markeling expenses 13,14
Adminisirative expenses 13,14
Research and development axpenses 13,14
Servica expenses 19,14
Other operating Income 15
Other operating expenaes 13,18
Operating Income ({oss)

Financia! Income !

Financlal expensas

Profit {loss) before Ingome tax

ncome tax expense {income)

Profit {foss) for he perlod

Enrnings (logs) pershare during

the poried {in won}
Earnings {lcss) per share 17
(Tn millions of Korean won)
Note

Proflt (toss} for the poried
Other comprehensive Income

Avallable-for-zale financlal assals
Actuarial galn (loss) on defined benefil liabliity 8
Other comprohensive Incoms
{or the perlod, not of tax

Total comprehensive Income{loss) for the period

2010 2008 (Unreviewed)
Three-Month Six-Month Three-Month Six-Month
7,653,107 14,880,444 8,477,122 16,651,219
8,441,404 12,979,309 6,200,508 11,692,160
1,211,703 2,601,125 2,186,514 3,859,020
818,365 1,512,674 837,155 1,638,995
161,978 272,618 118,728 226407
361,295 682,844 318,557 608,375
414,800 219,008 178,611 310,084
528,331 767,044 395,908 1,200,971
510,582 _. 800,408 367,768 1,123,805
(212,785) (119,370) 761,703 1,254,215
148,701 306,934 369,178 924,860
330,880 439,231 127,768 1,033,978
{394,985) {158,657) 1,003,116 1,145,007
{144.025) {138.736) 227,970 264,085
{£50,94D) (21,932) 775,118 881,032
(1,669) (139) 4811 5,487
2010 2009 (Unreviawad)
Three-Month Six-Month Three-Month Six-Month
(250,840) {21.952) 775,146 881,032
1,248 163 816 4,260
{227) (168) 917 1,827
1,022 {19) 1,733 6,098
(249,918) {21,951) 776,870 887,128

The accompenying notes are an integral part of these intarim separate financial slatements.
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LG Electronics In¢,

Interim Separate Statements of Changes In Shareholders’ Equity
Six-Month Perfods Evxded June 30, 2010 and 2003

(in mitiions of Korean won)

Balance at January 1, 2008
Comprehensiva Income
Profit for the pericd
Aciussial gain on Sefined benefit llabliity
Avaliable-for-sale financlal assets
Dividends
Balance st June 30, 2000 (Unreviewed)

Bafance at January 1, 2010

Comprehaensive income
Loss for the period .
Actuaria) losg on defined berelit lablity
Avallabla-for-sale financiel assels
Dividends

Betance at June 30, 2010

Note

18

18

Acoumulated .
Other Other
Pald-in Rotainod Comprelwnsive  Components
Capital Eamings Income of Equily Totaf
3,017,088 6,804,163 4235 (32,819) 9,792,667
- 881,032 - - 881,032
. 1,827 - - 1,827
. - 4,289 - 4260
- {87,292) - - (87.292)
3,017,088 7,820,760 8.604 {32,619) 10,622,663
3,017,088 7,802,549 11,197 {32,819) 10,867,965
. {21,992} - - {21,992)
. (188) . - {188}
- R 148 - 169
- - (282,725) e - (282,725)
3,017,088 1.587.704 13,308 - {32,819) 10,683,278
The accompanying notes are an Integrel pert of thesa nterim separale financial s_lniemams. /.
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LG Electronics Inc.

Intsrim Separate Statoments of Cash Flows
Six-Month periods Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

O

{in mililons of Korean won)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from cperalions
Interest recelved
Interest pald
Dividends recelved
Income lax expenge pald
Net cagh generated (used) from oporating activitles

Cash flows from Investing activities
Dacrease In inanclel deposits
Decrease In loans and other recaivebles
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assetls
Progeeds from disposa! of Investments In
subs!dlares, fointly controlled entitles and associates
Procaeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceoeds from disposal of Inteng’ble assets
Decrease In olher assels
Increase In ens end othsr recelvables
Acqulsttion of other financial assols
Acqulaition of Investmenis in
subsldiaries, Jolnlly controfled enthies and assoclates
Acquisiion of property, plant and equipment
Acqulsltion of Intanglble assets
Nat cash used In Invasting activities

Cesh flows from finuncing activities
Proceeds from borrowlngs
Repayments of bomrowings
Dividends pald
Net cash provided by {used In) financing activitles

Net ingrease {decrease} In cash end cash equivalents
Cash and cash squivalents at the beglnning of paried
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period

Note

19

Sh-Month Ferlod Ended June 30
2010 2000
{Unreviewad)

(1,075,622) 1,464,830,
21,548 15,338
{84.699) " {110,100)
91,250 181,318
{63.051) {125.260)
(1,060,574) 1,375,007
203,638 48,875
31,115 41,648
68,330 30,703
120,027 .
12,813 60,085
170 5,220
88 438
{36,206) (43.474)
(83.660) {102,221)
{132,268) (43,663)
(170,487) {213,402)
{113,818) {58,670)
{89,648) (273,651}
2,126,168 508,662
(728,600) {1.567.848)
{282,725) {67,232)
1,116,833 {1.056.618)
(73,880} 42,830
785,986 4,158,045
716,276 1,199,576

The accompanying notes ere an integraf part of these nterim separate inanca) statemente,. _»
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LG Electronics Inc,
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
-_Iune 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

1.

2'

General information

L@ Elscironics Ine. (the “Company”) was spun-off from LG Elacironics Investment Lid, on April
1, 2002, to engage in the manufacture and sale of electronie, information and communlication
products. The Company’s shares are listed on the Korea Exchange and some of its preferred
shares, In form of global depositary recalpts ("DRs"), are llsted on the Lordon Stock Exchange
as of the reporting date. The Company Is domiciled in Korea at Yaouldg-dong, Yeungdeungpo-
gu, Seoul,

The Company Is engaged in the manufacture and sals of electronic, Information and
communication products including mobile phones, TVs, air conditioners, refilgerators, washing
meachines, personne! computers and its core parts. As of June 30, 2010, the Company
operates manufecturing facllities mainly In Pyeongtaek, Changwon, Cheongju and Gumi in the
Republic of Korea,

As of June 30, 2010, LG Corp. and its related pertles own 34.8% of the Company's total shares,
exciuding preferved shares, while financlal Instituflons, forelgn Investors and others own the

- rest,

Significant Accounting Policles

The principal accounting policles applied In the preparation of these Interim separate financial
statements are sot out below, These policles have been consistently applied to &li the periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the Republic of Korea ("Korean IFRS"). These are the standards,
subsequent amendments and related interpretations Issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ("IASB") that have been adopted by the Republic of Korea,

The non-consolidated financlal statements of the Company were prepared in accordance with
accounting princlples generally accapted in the Republic of Korea ("K-GAAP"). The Company’s
Korean IFRS transition date according to Korean IFRS 1101, First-ime Adoplion of Korean
IFRS’, Is January 1, 2009, and reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition
from K-GAAP to Korean IFRS on the Company's equity, its comprehensive income and cash
flows are provided in Note 24,

The Interim separate financial statements for the six-month period ended June 30, 2010, have
besn prepared in accordance Korean IFRS 1034, 'Inferim Financlal Regorting’, and are subject
to Korean IFRS 1101, ‘First-time Adoption of Korean IFRS'. These Interim geparate financhal
statemoenis have been prepared In accordance with the Korean IFRS standards and
Interprotations Issued and effective or issued and early adopted at the reporling date. The
Korean IFRS standerds and inlerpratations ihat will be applicable at December 31, 2010,

! exuiai_ &
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LG Electronics inc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

including those that will be applicable on an optional ﬁaslé. are not known with certainty at the
time of preparing these interim separate financial statements,

The preparation of interim separate financia! statements in accordance with Korean IFRS 1034
requires the use of certaln critical accounting estimates. It also requires management fo
exerclse judgement In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policles. The areas
Involving & higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the separate financlal statements, ere disclosed in Note 3.

Invistments in Subsidlaries, Jointly Controlled Entitlas and Assoclates

Tho attached statements are the separate financlal statemsnis subject to Korean IFRS 1027,
‘Consvlldated and Seperale Financlal Statements’, and are those presented by a parent. The
investments In subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities are recorded at acquisition
cost on the basls of the direct squity interest, As of the date of transition to Korean IFRS, K-
GAAP camylng amount at the transition date is used as its- deemed cost. The Company
recognises a dividend from a subsidiary, Joinlly controlled entity or assoclate In profit or loss
when Its right %o recelve the dividend [s established.

Segment Reporting

Operaling segments are establishad on the basis of business divisions whose internal reporting
is provided to the ohief operaling decislon-maker who Is the chief executive officer, The
information of the operating segments Is disclosed In Note 4 to the Interim consolidated financlal

slatements, subject to Korean IFRS 1108, ‘Operating Segments’,

Forelgn Currency Translation

The Company's functional and presentation currency Is ‘Korean won'. Foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevalling at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Forelgn exchange
galns and Josses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation af
each reporting date exchange rates of monetary assels and llabliiles denominated in foreign

currencles are recognlised in the income statement. )

Forelgn exchange galns and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are reported In financial income and expenses’ in the separate Income statement. All other
forelgn exchangs galns and losses are reportad In ‘clher operating income and expenses’ in the
goparate Income statement.

Changes In the falr value of monetary securities denominated in foreign ourrency classified as
avallable-for-sale are analysed between transiation differences resulting from changes in the
amoriised cost of the security and other changes [h the carrying amount of the securlty.
Translation differences related to changes In amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes In carrying amount aré recognised In equity,

8  EXHIBIT E
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L.G Electronics Inc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

Tranelation differences on non-menetary financlal assets and liabllitles such as equities held at
falr value through profit er loss are recognised in the Income statement as part of the falr value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financlal assels such as equilles
classfled as avallable-for-sale are included in the squity. '

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash In hend, deposits held at call with banks, and other
short-term highly liquld Investments with original maturities less than three months.

Financlal lnstrﬁmants

(a) Classlfication

The Company classifles Its financlal assets In the following categories: financlel assels and
llabliities at falr value through profit or loss, loans and recelvables, avallable-for-sale financlal
assels, held-to-maturity Investment, and other financlal llabflitles at amortised cost, The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assels were acquired and the
nature of the Insfruments. Management determines the classification of its financlal assels at

Inittal recognition,

) Financial assets and Nabliitles at fair vafus through profit or loss

Finaneial assets and llabliitls at falr valus through profit or loss are financlal Instruments held
for trading, Financial assets and Habliities are classified In this category if acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing i in the near term. Derivatives that are not
subject to hadge accounting and financlal Instruments having embedded derivatives are also
inciuded In this category. The Company’s financlal assets and Jiabliities at fair value through
proflt or loss comprige ‘other financlal assets’ and *other financlal llabiiifles’,

i) Loans and recelvables

Loans and recelvables are non-derivative financlal assels wilh fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are included In current assels, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting perlod. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Company's loans and recelvables comprise 'cash and cash
equivalents’, ‘financial deposity’, ‘rade receivables’, foans and other recelvables'. '

i) Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Company's management has the positive Intention and
abllity to hold to maturity and are classified as ‘other financlal assets' In the separato statement
of financlal position. if the Company were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-
maturity financlal assets, the whole category would be talnted and reclasslfied as avallable-for-

g
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LG Electronics Inc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements -

June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

sala. Held-to-maturity financial assets are Includad in non-current assels, except for those with
meturities less than 12 months after the end of the reporiing period, which are classified as
current assets.

iv} Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financlal assets are non-derivative financial assets that are ejther designated
in this category or not classiiied in any of the other categories, They are ncluded In ‘other
financial assels’ as non-curent assets unless maturities are less than 12 months or
management intends to dispose of within 12 months afier the end of the reporting period.

v} Financlal llabiities measured at amortised cost

The Company classlfies non-derivative financlal llabliitles as financial liablliles measured at
amorlised cost except for financlal llabilittes at fair value through profit or loss or financial
llablitles that arise when a transfer of a financlal asset doos not qualify for derecognition. In this
case the transferrad asset continues to be recognised and & financlal liablity 1s measured at the
consideration received. Financkal liabllities measured at amortised cost are included In non-
current llablilties, except for maturities less than 12 manths after the end of the reporiing perfod,
which are classified as current liabilities.

{b) Recognition and Measurement

Regular purchases ang sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade dale. Investments
are inflially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financla) assets carried af fair valus through profit or loss are
Initially recognised at falr value, and transactlon costs are expensed in the separate income
stalement, Financlal assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
invesimenis have expired or have been trensferred and the Company has fransferred
substantlally all risks and rewards of ownership, Avallable-for-sate financlal assets and financlal
assels at falr value through profit or loss are subsequently carled at falr value. Loans and
recelvables are subsequently canled at amortised cost using the effective Interest method,

Galns or losses arlsing from changes In the falr value of the financlal assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are presented in the separate Income statement within financlal income
and expenses' In the perlod in which they arise. The Company recognises a dividend from
financial assets at falr value through profit or loss In the separate Income stetement when lts

right to recsive the dividend 1s established,

When securities classifled as avallable-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised In equity are reported In the separale income statement as ‘financial

jncome and expenses'.

Interest on available-for-sale securitles calculated using the effective Interest methed is
recognised in the separale lncome statement @s part of financial Income’. Dividends on

10
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LG Electronics Inc. :
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

avallable-for-sale equity Instruments are recognised in the separate Income slatement as part
of ‘financlal income’ when the Company’s right lo recelve the dividend is established,

Impalment of Financial Assets
(@) Assels carried at amortised cost

~ The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there I8 objeciive evidence
that & financlal asset or a group of financial assets {s impakred. A financlal asset or-a group of
financlel assets is impalred and Impairment [osses are Incumed only If there I8 objective
evidence of Impalrment as a result of one or more events thal ocourved after the Initial
recognition of the asset {a loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of financlal assets that can be
reliably eatimated.

The ofileria that the Company uses to determine that there Is objective evidence of an
impairment loss Include:

»  Significant financial difficulty of the Issuer or obligor;

s A breach of contract, such as a defaull or delinquency [n inlerest or princlpal payments;

" = For economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, granting to
the borrowsr a concassion that the lender would not otherwise conslider;

= i becomes prebable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganisation;

* The disappearance of an acfive market for that financlal asset because of financlal
difficulties; or ‘

»  Observable data indicating that there Is 2 measurable decrease In the estimaled future
cash flows from a portfelio of financlal assels since the Initfal recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be Identified with the individual financlal assets In the
portfollo, including: .

(i} adverse changes In the payment status of borrowers In the porifolio;
{ii) national or focal economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets In
the portfollo,

The amount of the loss Is measured as the difference between the assel's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financlal asset's origlnal effective interest rate. The assel's
carrying' amount of the asset Is reduced and the amount of the loss Is recegnised in the income
stalement. As a practical expedient, the Company may measure impairment on the basls of an
Instrument’s fair value using an observable markst price,

#f, In a subsequent period, the amount of the Impairment Joss decreases and the decrease can
ba related objectively to an event accurring after the Impalrment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment
toss s recognised in the Income statement,
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LG Electronics Inc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

(b) Assels classified as available-for-sale

-“The Company assesses al the each reporting date whether there is an objeotive evidence that
a financlal asset or a group of financlal assets Is impalred. For debt securities, the Company
uses the criterla refer to {a) above, In the case of equity Invesiments classified as avallable-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged dedline In the fair value of the security below Iits cost [s also
evidence that the assels are Impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sele

- financlal assets, the cumulative loss ~ measured as the diference belween the acquisition cost
and the cument fair value, less any impairment loss on that financlel asset previously
recegnised in profit or lozs ~ Is removed from equity and recognised In the income statement.
impairment losses recognised In the Income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the income statement. If, In a subsequent perlod, the falr value of a debt Instrument
classified as avallable-for-sale increases and the Increese can be objsclively related to an evert
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised n profit or loss, the impalrment foss is
reversed through the Income statement.

Derivative Financlal Instruments

Derivatives are initlally recognlsed at fair value on the date a.derivative contract Is entersd Into
“and are subsequently re-measured at ihelr fair value. When hedge doss not mest the criterla
for hedge accounting, changes In falr value of those ere recognised fyplcally to the separate
income statement within ‘other operaling income and expenses' or financial Income and

expenses’ according {o the nalure of transactions,

Trade Receivables

Trade recelvables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed
In the ordinary course of business. If collection Is expected In one year or fess, they are

" classified as current assets, If not, they are presented as non-current assets. Trade receivables
are recognised Inftlally &t falr value, less provision for Impalrment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost Is determined using the
welghted-average method, except for inventories in-transit which are determinsd using the
specific identiflcation method, The cost of finlshed goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direcl labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capaclly). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value Is the estimated selling
price Ins the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses,

Property, Plant and Equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated al historical cost less depreciation except for
certain land which was meesured at fair value as desmed cost, Historical cost Includes

expenditures directly attribitable to the acquisition of the items.
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LG Electronics Inc. ,
Notes to the Interim Separate Financlal Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

Subsequent costs are included In the asgel's camrylng amount or recognised as a separale
agsel, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future econamic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and tha cost of the item can be measured reliably. The canying
amount of the replaced pan Is derecognised, All other repalrs and malntenance are charged to
the separate income statement during the financlal period in which they are Incurred,

Land Is not depreciated. Depraciation on other assels Is calculated using the sfralghtline
method fo allocate the difference betwesn thelr cost and thelr residual values over thelr
estimated useful lives, as follows: )

Bulldings 20 - 40 years -

Structures : ‘ 20~ 40 years
Machinery 5 -10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Tools ‘ 1- Byears
Equipment ) : 8 years
Others § years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted i appropriste, at the
gach reporting date. An assel’s carrying amount Is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount If the asset's carrying amount Is greater than #s estimated recoverable amount. Gains -
and losses on disposals are delermined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within 'olher operating Income and expenses' in the separate income
statement,

Borrowing Costs

The Company capitalises borrowing costs direclly atiributable to the acquisition or construgtion ’
of qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset during an extendad period In which_ it

prepares &n geset for Its infended use, The Company recognises other borrowing cosls as an

expense in the pariod incurred,

Government Grants -

Grants from the government are recognised at their falr value where there Is a reasonable
assurance thet the grant will be recelved and the Company will comply with all altached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised In the ssparale income
statemen! to malch them with the costs they are Intended to compensate,

Government grants relaling to property, plant and equipment are presented as a deduction of
related assets and are credited to depreclation over the expected lives of the related assets.
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LG Electronics Inc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

Intangible Agsets
{8) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
acquisition-date falr value of the Company's previously held equity Interest In the acquiree over
the net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for Impalrment
and carried at cost fess accumulated impairment losses. Impalrment losses on goodwili are not
reversed,

{b) industrial property rights.

Industrial property rights are shown at historical eost. Industrial property rights have a finite
useful life and are caried at cost less accumulated amoriisation, Amortisation Is calculated
using the straight-ine method to allocate the cost of Industrial property rights over thelr
esfimated useful lives of five to fen years,

{c) Davslopment costs

Development costs which are individually identifable end directly related to a new technology
or to new praducts which carry probable future benefits are capitalised as intangible assets,
Amortisalion of development costs based on the straight-fine method over thelr estimated
useful lives of one to five years begins at the commencement of the commercial production of
the related products or use of the related technology.

(d) Ofher inlanglble assols

Other intengible assets such as sofiware which mest the definllion of an intanglble asset are
amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated usefu! lives of five years when the
asset Is avafiable for use, Membership rights are regarded as intanglble assets with Indefinite
useful life and not amortised becauss there Is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
asset [s expected to generate net cash flows for the entity. All membership rights are {ested
annually for impalrment and stated at cost less accumulated Impairment. Impalmment losses are
not reversed.

Research and Development Costs

Costs assoclated with research are recognised as an expense as Incurred. Costs that are
klentifiable, controllable and directly atiributable to development projects are recognised as
Intangible assets when all the following criterla are met:

» [t is technically feasibla to complste the Intanglble asset so that it will be avallable for
use;

« Management intends to complete the Intanglble asset and use or sell it;
» ‘Therse Is the abliilty to use or sell the Intangible assetf;
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LG Electronics Inc.
Notes fo the interlm Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

- = it can be demonstrated how the intanglble asset will generate probable fulure economis
benefits;

» Adequate technlcal, financial and other resources {o complete the development and to
use or sell the intanglble asset are avallabie; and

» The expenditure aftributable 1o the Intangible asset during its development can be
reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not mest these criterla are recognized a3 an expanse
as Incurred. Davelopment costs previously recognised as an expense are nol recognised as an
asset In a subsequent peried. Capiialised development costs which are stated as intangible
asseis are amortised using the straight-line method when the assets are avallable for use and
are tested for impalrment, .

Investment Property

Investment property Is held lo eam rentals or for capltal appreclation or both, Invesiment
property is measured Initially at Its cost Including transaction costs incured in acquiring the
asset, After recognition as an asse!, Investment property Is carrled at lis cost less any
agcumulated depreciation and any accumulated impalrment losses, .

Subsequent costs are included In the assel's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, only when it is probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the ltem will flow
to the Gompany and the cost of the ftem can be measured rellably, The carrying amount of the
replaced part Is derecognised. All other repalrs and maintenance are charged to the income
slatement during the financlal perlod in which they are incurred.

Land held for Investment propsrty Is not depreciated. Investment property except for land is
depreciated using the straight-line method over thelr estimated uselul lives.

The depreciation methed, the residual velue and the useful iife of an asset are reviewed at least
at each flnanclal year end and, if the management judges that previous estimates should be
adjusted, the change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate,

Impairment of Non-Financlal Assets

Goodwill and Intanglble assets that have an indefinite usefut life are not subject to amorifsation
and are tested annually for Impalrment. At each reporting date, assels that are subject to
amortisation are reviswed for impalrment whenever events or changes In circumstances
indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable. An impalrment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds ils recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount Is the higher of an agset's falr value less costs 1o sell and value Ih use. For
the purposes of assessing Impalrment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately ldentifiable cash flows (‘cash-generaling units’). Non-financlal assets other than
goodwill or Intangible assets with an Indefinite useful ife that suffered Impalrment are reviewed
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L.G Electronics Inc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporiing date,
Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired In the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classifled as cument liabllitles If
payment Is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liablitles.
Trade payables are recognised inltially at falr value and subsequently measured at amoriised
cost using the efféctive Interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised Inltfally at falr value, net of fransactlon costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequenlly carded at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds {nel of
transaction costs) and the redemption value |s recopnised In the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective Interest method. The Company ¢lassifies the liabillty
as current as long as it doss not have an unconditional right to defer its seitlement for at least
12 months after the reporling date. Terms of a liabllity that could, at the option of the
counterparly, result in fts seftlement by the lssue of equily Instruments do not affect its
classification.

Current and Deferred Incomo Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises cument and deferred tax. Tax Is recognised In the
income statement, excapl to the extent that It relates to liems recognised In olher
comprehensive income or directiy in equity. In this cass, the tax is also recognised In other
comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively.

Management perlodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation s subject o Interpretation, 1t establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basls of amounts expected to be pald {o the tax authoritles.

Deferred income tax Is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
esseets and Jiabllities and thelr carrying amounts In the finenclal statements. It represents future
tax consaquences that will arlse when recovering or setfling the carrying amount of it5 assets
and liabliitles. However, deferred Income fax Is not eccounted for ff i arises from Iniiial
recognition of an asset or llabllity In & transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects nelther accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred Income tax
Is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacled by the
date of statement of financlal position and are expected to apply when the related deferred
Incoms tax asset s realised or the deferred income tex llabliity Is settled.

Deferred Income tax essets are recognised only to the extent that it Is probable that future
texable profit will be avallable agalnst which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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LG Electronics Ingc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

Deferred Income tax liabilities Is provided on temporary differences arising on investments In
subsldiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controfied by the group and i Is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assels are recognised only to the extent that It Is
probable that the temporary difierence will reverse In the foresseabls future and texable profit
will be avallable against which the temporary difference can be uiilised.

Deferred Income tax assets and Habilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right lo
offset cument lax assets against curent tax liabilitles and when the defered Income taxes
.assels and Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on elther the
taxable entlty.

Interim period income tax expense s accrued uging the tax rate that would be applicable to
expected tolal annus! earnings applied to the pre-tax income of the interim period.

Provisions

Provislons are recognised when the Company has a present legal or consiructive obligation as
a result of past events and an outflow of rasources required to settle the obligation Is probable
and can be reliably estimated, Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses,

A warranty reserve is accrued for the estimated costs of future warranty claims based on
historical experience. Sales return provision Is for the estimated sales returns based on the
historical., Whera the Company Is required to restore Its leaaed assets to their origlnal slate at
the end of tha lease-term, the Company recognises the present value of the estimated cost of
restoration as a provision for restoration, When there Is a probabillty that an outflow of economic
beneflls wifl occur from litigation or disputes, and whose amount Is reasonably estimable, a
corresponding amount of provision Is recognised as Rtigation and others in the financlal
statement,

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expendltures expected to bs required fo
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects curent market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The Increase In the provision due o
passage of time Is recognised as an Interest expense.

Employee Benefits
(a) Defined benefit llabilfty

The Company operates varlous pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through
payments fo Insurance companles or trustee-administered funds, delermined by periodic
acluarial calculations, The Company oparatas both defined contribution and defined benefit

plans.

A defined contribution plan Is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed conlributions
into a separate fund. The Company has no legal er construclive obligations to pay further
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LG Electronics Inc,
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements

June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

contributions even if the fund deoes not hold sufficlent assets to pay all smployees the benefils
refating to employee service In the current and prior periods. For the defined contribution plan,
the Company pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension Insurance plans
on 8 mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis, The Company has no further payment
obligations once the confributions have baen paid. The confributions are recognised as
employee beneflt expanse when they are due. Prepald contributions are recognised es an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the fulure payments Is avallable.

A defined benefit plan Is a pension plan that Is nof a definad coniribution plan. Typlcally defined
beneflt plans define an amount of penslon benefit that an employee will recelve on retizement,
usually dependent on one or more faclors such as age, years of service and compensation.
The flability recognised In the separate statement! of financial positlon In respest of the defined
benefit pension plan Is the present value of the defined benefit llability at the end of the
reporting period less the falr value of plan assels. The deflned benefit liabliily 1s caloulated
annually by Independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined beneflt liabliity I3 determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporete bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefils will be pald, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the refated pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experisnce adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumplions are charged or credited to other comprehensive income in the peried in which they
arlse,

(b) Share-bassd payments

The Company operates cash-setilsd, share-based compensation plans, under which the
Company recelves services from employees as conslderation for the payments of the difference
betwsen marke! price of the stock and exercise price, The falr value of the employee services’
received In exchange for the grant of the options Is recognised as an expense in the separate
Income statement over the vesting period, The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the falr value of the options granted consldering the Impact of any service and
performance vesiing condlifons and non-vesting condition, Untll the liabllty Is seitled, the
Company shall remeasure the falr value of the liabllity at each reporting date and at the dale of
settiement, with any changes in falr value recognised in profit or loss for the perioed.

(c) Cther long-term employse benefils

The Company provides other long-term employse benefits to thelr employees. The entitlement
to these benefits Is usually conditional on the employee working more than ten years, The
expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment using the same
accounting methodology as used for defined bensfit pension plans. Actuarial gains and losses
ariging from experience adjustments end changes [n acluarial assumptions are recognised In
the Income statement as they occur. These benefits are calculated annually by independent

actuaries.
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L.G Electronlcs Inc.
Notes to the Interim Separate Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009, and December 31, 2009

(d) Termination benelits

Termination benefits are payable when employment s terminated by the Company before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchenge for
these benefits, The Company recognises termination bensiits when it is demonstrably
committed {o elther: terminating tha employmsnt of cutrent employess according to a detalled
formal plan without possibllity of withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as & result of an
offer made to encovrage voluntary retirement.

Share Capltal

Where the Company purchases the Company's equity share capital, the consideration pald,
Including any directly attsthutable Incremental costs Is deducted from eqully aftributable to the
Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or relssued, Where such shares are
subsequently relssued, any conslderation received is Included in equity atirbutable to the
Company’s equity holders, '

Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration recelved or recelvable for the sales of
goods and services [n the ordinary course of the Company's aciiviiies, Revanue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

The Company recognlses revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it s
probable that future economic benefits will flow fo the Company and when specific criterla have
besn met for each of the Company's activities as described below. The Company bases its
estimates on historical results, taking to consideration the type of customer, the fype of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

The Company manufactures and sells moblls communication products, mullimedia, home
glactronkes and thelr related core paris and display. Sales of goods are recognised when the
Company has delivered products to the customer. Delivery doas not accur until the products

. have been shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the cuslomer, and either the customer has accepted the products In accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective
evidenco that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfled.

The products are often sold with volume discounts and customers have a right to return faulty
products in the market. Accumulated experience Is used to estimate and provide for the
discounts and retuins, The volume discounts are mssessed based on anliclpated annual
purchases, The Company recognises provisions for product warranties and sales retum based
on reasonable expsctation reflecting warranty obligation and sales return rates Incurred by

sales (Nole 8).
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